

## City of Maricopa

# **Meeting Minutes - Draft City Council Regular Meeting**

City Hall 39700 W. Civic Center Plaza Maricopa, AZ 85138 Ph: (520) 568-9098 Fx: (520) 568-9120 www.maricopa-az.gov

Mayor Christian Price Vice-Mayor Nancy Smith Councilmember Marvin L. Brown Councilwoman Julia R. Gusse Councilmember Vincent Manfredi Councilmember Rich Vitiello Councilmember Henry M. Wade Jr.

7:00 PM Tuesday, March 17, 2020 **Council Chambers** 

#### 1. **Call to Order**

The City Council Regular Meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. Jeff Barnum from the Church of Jesus Christ Of Latter-Day Saint's Butterfield Ward gave the invocation and Vice Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### 2. **Roll Call**

Councilwoman Gusse was present telephonically.

Present: 7 - Councilwoman Julia R. Gusse, Mayor Christian Price, Vice Mayor Nancy Smith, Councilmember Vincent Manfredi, Councilmember Rich Vitiello, Councilmember Henry Wade and Councilmember Marvin L. Brown

#### 3. Proclamations, Acknowledgements and Awards

Mayor Price reported that a press release went out cancelling the awards and proclamations due to the coronavirus. He stated the Woman's History Month proclamation would be postponed. He noted that Mike Richie, owner of ACE Hardware had recently sold his business and would also be aknowledged at a later date.

#### 4. Report from the Mayor

Mayor Price reported on the new library groundbreaking. Next, he stated the Regular Council Meeting for April 7th, 2020 would be cancelled. Next, he read the following press realease:

Fifteen Days to Make a Difference: City of Maricopa's Response to COVID-19. Maricopa, Arizona, March 17, 2020 - The City of Maricopa is known as a caring, strong and resilient community. Putting others first is demonstrated on a daily basis. People care and so do your City workers who remain committed to serve. City leadership and its community partners remain engaged and work daily to maintain public health and safety while balancing real life needs. We stand at the ready to meet the evolving challenges resulting from Novel Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19). It is incumbent upon all of us to do our part.

We take our lead from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) and the Pinal County Department of Public Health Services and will follow any directive provided with the understanding that there

are different protocols for various locations based on local conditions.

Parks, Community Centers and Library:

We are taking proactive measures with regard to operating City facilities to help protect high-risk populations and reduce risk for spread of the virus. These measures are under constant review as new information becomes available. Thus, the City will be cancelling all programs, activities and events that do not allow social distancing. Copper Sky Multigenerational Center and City parks will remain open for general use and outdoor sports will continue as we encourage residents to stay active while practicing social distancing. We are also cancelling all programming pertaining to our senior population. The City of Maricopa Public Library will remain open; however, all events and programs with more than 10 participants are canceled. Small numbers are permitted to enter the library for book selection and other brief business. Certain library services may not be available. In some cases, home delivery may be an option. The City will be assertive in enforcing sanitary practices in use of its facilities including wiping down equipment and good hygiene and we encourage our residents to be vigilant as well in theirs (see: Encouraging All to Do Their Part).

#### Day Camps:

As a City, we are working hard to be a reliable partner for our families. We are monitoring the situation closely and will continue to operate day camps and other programming in support of working parents as long as we are able to provide a safe environment for our youth and participating adults. Camps will be modified to accommodate group settings no greater than 10 campers per area. Parents should be prepared to execute alternate plans if or when it is determined that such programs should be closed. Children who display symptoms are unable to attend the camps based on our standard camp policy. Again, we encourage all to do their part.

#### City Hall:

City Hall will remain open for business. Where and when possible, telecommuting meetings can and will be established. In the interim, certain board or volunteer committee meetings may be canceled or postponed. All boards, committees and commissions meetings are canceled, with the exception of City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission meetings, schedule to be determined. We ask that you try to conduct any business you have with the City via electronic format whenever possible versus coming in-person.

#### Police and Fire Response:

The Police and Fire Departments are maintaining a normal business schedule. All first responders are provided information from the health department as it relates to the virus. They also carry masks and gloves as a matter of practice. The Fire Department is working closely with the Pinal County Office of Emergency Management to monitor the situation and is following stringent infectious disease protocols, already in place. The ability to provide emergency services to the community has not been impacted, and the City does not anticipate any delay or interruption to services.

#### Local Health Centers and Schools:

The City is working collaboratively and closely with local schools and health centers as they continue to prepare, plan and modify protocols. Please contact them directly to

stay informed.

Encouraging All to Do Their Part:

- a. Listen to and follow the directions of your state and local authorities. The City of Maricopa is subject to the direction of the State of Arizona and Pinal County. At present, we have no, to limited authority over private events or other jurisdictions.
- b. If you feel sick, stay home. Do not go to work or mingle in public. Call your health provider.
- c. If your children are sick, keep them at home. Do not sent them to school, ball practice or other activities or events where people gather.
- d. If you are an older person with a serious underlying health condition that can put you at increased risk, stay home and away from other people.
- e. Practice good hygiene.
- f. Limit gatherings to fewer than 10 people.

We will continue to monitor other programming and may issue other cancellations if we feel the health and safety of participants and/or staff are compromised or when so directed by local authorities. Please monitor the City of Maricopa website at www.maricopa-az.gov for updates and modifications to programming and events. The City, Elected Officials and Staff remain ready to serve and meet all essential services.

For the most up-to-date information on the outbreak and what you can do to reduce your risk, please visit the State of Arizona Department of Health Services at https://www.azdhs.gov or CDC at www.cdc.gov.

Vice Mayor Smith reported on her trip to Washington DC two weeks ago with Mayor Price, Councilwoman Gusse and Intergovernmental Affairs Director, Dale Wiebusch. She reported attending an Interstate 11 Coalition meeting on behalf of the Mayor and provided an update.

Councilmember Wade encouraged the community to practice social distancing and hand washing. He detailed some of the classes offered at the Washington DC conference. He stated that the Census would be offering funding and hopefully the City would be able to benefit from that.

Councilmember Brown detailed the workshops on transportation and infrastructure. He stated there was also a new committee created by the National League of Cities called Race, Equity And Leadership (REAL) and elaborated.

## 5. Report from the City Manager

There were no items reported.

## 6. Call to the Public

There were no public comments.

## 7. Minutes

7.1 MIN 20-14 Approval of Minutes from the February 18, 2020 City Council Regular meeting.

A motion was made by Councilmember Manfredi, seconded by Vice Mayor Smith, that the Minutes be Approved. The motion carried by a unanimous vote.

## 8. Consent Agenda

#### Approval of the Consent Agenda

A motion was made by Councilmember Marvin L. Brown, seconded by Councilmember Henry Wade, to Adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion carried by unanimous vote.

8.1 LIQ 20-02

The Mayor and City Council shall discuss and possibly take action recommending approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control regarding an application submitted by Andrea Lewkowitz on behalf of Walgreens #21293 which is located at 41840 N. Maricopa-Casa Grande Highway. Discussion and Action.

This Liquor License was Approved.

8.2 CON 20-04

The Mayor and City Council shall discuss and possibly take action to ratify a Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions with Glenn R. Veenendaal for the purchase of approximately .37 acres generally located at 44329 W. Arizona Avenue for a purchase price of \$77,500.00. Discussion and Action.

This Contract was Approved.

8.3 <u>CON 20-05</u>

The Mayor and City Council shall discuss and possibly take action on approving a Communications License with Fatbeam, LLC for an initial five-year term with one additional automatic five-year renewal option, and authorizing the City Manager to execute any necessary documents related thereto. Discussion and Action.

This Contract was Approved.

8.4 SPEVLIQ 20-03

The Mayor and City Council shall discuss and possibly take action on recommending approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for an Application for Special Event Liquor License submitted by Christine Garcia on behalf of Tortosa Homeowners Association for a catered wine tasting dinner on Saturday, April 25, 2020 at 36340 W. Picasso St. Discussion and Action.

This Special Event Liquor License was Approved.

- 9. Regular Agenda and/or Public Hearings
- 10. Executive Session
- 11. Adjournment

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Nancy Smith, seconded by Councilmember Henry Wade, to Adjourn at 7:25 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

**Certification of Minutes** 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council of Maricopa, Arizona, held on the 17th day of March, 2020. I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

Dated this 21st day of April, 2020.

Vanessa Bueras City Clerk

City of Maricopa Page 5